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The Ontario Worsted Co. was established in 1881, and
employs 75 hands in the manufacture of two-ply ingrain
carpets, and woolen and worsted yarns.

The malt house of Carter & Co. has a capacity of 50,000
bushels. It was established in 1870, and employs from 10
to 15 hands

The Dominion Brush Works have been established five
years, and employ from 10 to 12 hands, in the manufacture
of stove, floor: and shoe brushes. Robert Dalbj.

The saw mill of Wm. Turner has been established six or
seven vears, and employs 20 hands in the manufacture of
lumber, shingles, and square timber.

The Elora Tannery was established 25 or 30 years ago,
and employe 15 hands in the manufacture of all kinds of*
leather. Speciality, pebble and split. Northwood &
Rolle.

The planing mill of Joseph Stickney has been estab-
lished about eight years; manufactures sash, doors, and
blinds, and does ageneral building business.

The Mechanics Institute was established November 4th,
1871, and has a library of 5,500 volumes, being, next to
Toronto, the la. tgeet mechanics library in Ontario, and is
said to be the best collection in the Province The
Institute is well sustained, having a metnbership of 200. A
regular winter course of lectures is sustained. J. G. Beam,
Prest; Robert Mitchell, secretary and librarian.

The Elora Skating and Curling Rink Co. was incorpor-
ate4 Sept. 26th, 1879. Thoe. Biggar, Prest. ; Edward
Burns, Sec.-treas. Rink on East Mill street.

Elora Chapter, No. 49, R. A. M., was organized eight
years W. F. Savage, M. D. let Principal ; T. P.
8mith, Scribe E. Meeta Wednesday after full moon.
There are 40 members.

Irvine Lod ^te, No. 208, A. F. and A. M. E. P. Smith,
W. M. ; P. Simpson, Sec. Meets Friday befo:-e fnll moon.
There are 75 members.

Elora I.udge, No. 231, 1. O. 0. F.,was orpanited in
February, 1882. Robert Stewart, N. Gl.; W. H. Auger,
R. S. Meets Thursdays. There are 45 members.

Elora L. O. L, No. 846, was organized 26 veare ago.
Robert Topham, W.M.; EbEnezer Day, Sec. -Meeta the
Aret Monday In each month. There are 25 members.

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
inr 450. It was erected in 1862 at a cost of$7,000. Ser-
vices at 11 a. In. and 6.80 p.m. Sanday school at 2.80.
Prayer meeting on Thuruday. There are 100 members.
Rev. Geo. Buggin.

St. John's Church (Epis.) is a brick building, eeating
250. It was erected in 1 S75 at a cost of $3,000.Services
at 11 a.m. and 7 p.m. Sunday school beforc morning ser•
vice. Cottage meeting nn Wednesday evening. There are
75 families. Rev. Perciv4l L. Spencer, incumbent.

Knox Church ( ['re3b.) is a stone building, seating 800.
It was erected in 187: at a cost of $32,000. Services at
11 a in. and 6.80 p. in. Sunday school at 2.30.Prayer
meeting on Wednesday. There are 24u members. Rev.
S. W. Fisher.

Chalmers Church (Presh.) is a etune building. It was
erected in 1S77 at a cost of $12,000.The c5ong1'eption
was organized 27 years ago. Services at 11 it. in. and 6.30
p M. Sunday school at 2.30 p. in. Bible clam at 3.
Yra,fer meeting and Bible clais on Wednesday. Rev. Jas.
Middlemisd.

The Church of the Immaculate Conception( R. C.) is a
brick building, seating 600. It was erected in 1870 at a
cost of $10,000. Services at 9 and 11 a.tn. Vespers at 7

C
. Sunday echool at 6 F. in. There are 50 families,
. J. J. Lee, priek.

The village was laid out in the year 1832 by Win.
Gilkison, of Rrantford, and in the fall'of the same year the
village plot was surveyed by Lewis Burwell, and in the
followinR year a bridge was constructed across the river,
which was subsequently de3troyed by the spring floods and
another one built in 1858. Previous to 1844 little im-
provement was made. In that year Chas. Allan formed it
company and huilt a grist mill, stores, &c. The village
then steadily improved. It was named after the celebrNted
caves of Elora, in India. The first actual settler was Roi-
well Matthews, wlw, in 1818, made a clearing at the Falls.
The village was incurporated in 1858, David Foote being
the first reeve. Martin Martin kept the first hotel. The
Wesleyan Methodists erected the first church ; Knox
Church ( Presb.) being the next.
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Fttaut» is a doarisbiu8 in corporated willags on the Grasd
River, three miles sent from Elor><, and distant 13 miles
from Guelph and 61 from Toronto. The Grand 1{irer
aLr..rds an excellent water privilege for its mills and factr
ie., and beinec on the line of botb the C. V. R. and W.Ç.
â B R. R. its ahippin+l facilities am flnt-clasa It is also in
important mart for the products of the rich agrionltur ►1
country with which it is surrounded. Its business blocks
and atsxa, wbich an nu merous. are monl• built of stoos,
as are many of the dwellings, cllluohes, sobools and hctoti
ies, which give it a solid, wb.tantial appearance. Ti+e
manufacturing interaw an well su.tainewi, and the rdooa
t ional facilities ample, the soboob baina eNciently ol8oetnd
and well patrunimd. The lbturbes are mostl,r of none, of
bandsonwe e:teri..r, an ornamont to the village and a criedit
to the proaater+k. The river, which divides the village into
two parts, i..panned b^r two substantial bridges, the lied
I Wua oo each side witb a^aUe Incline. 1 to abl cos*
dnated weekl7 papar, the TAr New R*ewd. is pulli.bed
bere, whi-:h a well patrnnind. The population I. .1Knt
S.0mt.

The Monkland Woolea Mills have been established 94
and «op1071$ hands in the manufacture ad bla^tkett,

Awndsr twee3i, ^arns. dra. Jatoes Wilson.
Monk land Yilla w^r+a eatablished In 1!+bt, taad contais

four ruas of stoos for Aour aod two for oatamal. Çapaait'
-{10 barreb a da^r . Jamss Wilson.

The Fer^. Axriaultaral Works won eMablisw Is
1674. and employ 14 bands is the tsaetJaatutr of mowew
and reMwrs,_plows and otlwr agrioultanl implwtsaty
sto.nt, d<a. Beatty Brut

The maoltitais shop of T`oa. Richardson bas been estaL-
IW»d 14 7eeM and empby+ Ave or si: hands in the mat-
afaotwe of pbws. bamwa, and otbee aocultaril
=,!gamets.

FerWo. Mills bave bean establia►od about 60 rean,
and e+awtain A.e tins of .tot,es kw doer, and tau for oat
eweaL Capecity 100 baereia a day. Andnrw sieonple.

The FerFos 8e+awKy br bttaa establisbr^! 14 or 1! ►
psata, asd employ. .ytbt or twn hatadr in the 11ianufadaw
utile and patetr. Hollat.d dt Oo.

'tif 11,01. . tx•.

alrrrer Iwt'4e, No. 347, A. F. & A. M ., was urKanised

R. H. PerrY, Sec.; David B. HYrtt, litwarian. The lihrary

in 1h7fi. John Tindale, W. Y. ; Geo. A. Reid, Seo.
lluet• Thursday atter full tnoon. Tbero are 40 mernben.

Fergus Laigt►, No. 73, l. O. U. F. John Thomson,
jr., N. U.; Joseph Wood, Sec. Hoeb on Tuesday. Tben
are 70 tnemben.

Fergus Lodge, No. 63, A. O. U. W., waaurytanised three
or tour yearr aom^. John Ustaoa, Y. W.; E. Dennis.
Reourdar. Yests eacb alternate Friday. Tbere are al
tnentbees.

The Gospel Tomp-aooe Association wu orSanissd Aro
or six Ivan ago. He,► . J. B. Y allan, Preat. ; J ames Cl71e,
!lac. Ideets m..ot617. Thom are 30 a40 membenn.

Ferguw Division Providet.t Association of America, was
orSaataad in 1879. A. Taylor, Prost ; Thom. 1lamilton,
`Ape A. (Qmwr, Y. D., pbFaioiaa. Yew the third Man
tiay in each moatb. There are 60 members.

l:erytw Ya•haaier lnatitute. G. A. Reid, Prost..

contains 3,i10n vt.1ungt-s N ►'g bt sobool and t--,urM of ieo•
tarra in the w^int^•r Pt-&64,n. There am 145 memiMrw.

The Canada atethodist (:burob was erected in 1869. It
is built of bnak, with a seating capacity of 400. Services
at 11 a.tn., and 6.50 p.m. Souday aelwol at t.30. Prayer
meeting on Wednesday. There an 160 wembsr. Ho
1latthew Swanp.

Melville Cstttch (Presb.) is a stoe» building, sa+atinx 600.
It was erected in 1846. Services as 11 an, and 6.8t1 p.m.
gnedar aobool at 3. rra7er mMting on Wednesday.
There are 360 tnembets. Hew. Geo. Smellie

St. Andrew's Church (Pnsb.) is a atone building, aeatie
W. It was ereded about 1861L fisrvicvs at 11 a m. an:
+t.au p.m. sanda7 .obool et IL30. Praier meatin8 on
Wedne+day. Thom are S50 memban. Re.. James B.
V u 1lan.

lift. James Ch" (Epis.l la a atm btrildin6,aatatitW 00.
Services st 11 ami. and 7 p.m. $undy aatsbod at a.
Tbere an 50 families. Rev. James ][ortos.

8t. Jwap6's Cbtttah (k. C.,) la a oRono building, aaatin6
:Sn. It was cereted in 1O0C Services at 8 and 11 a.to.

I
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alternately. Sunday school at •? p.m. There are 60 fim.
ilies, Rsv. J. J. Lee, of EI ► va, 1 ► rteFt.

For^us wnu laid out in 16:13 by tiun. Adam Ferguson
and Jarnep. Wub*ter, who built an dain aid erected a saw
and Krip-t luill. Settlement cumn ►eneexl in 1S34. Tholnae
Young opened the tiret store. Hug,li Black kept the flrbt
hotel. St. Andr.-v►•'a (YreNb.) was the first church erected,
Rrv. Alex. tsardiner being the tiret Fwatur. Jameo
yel,jueen wa+ the first school teacher, and the first rret-
maeter, ►uul hah occupied the latter p,oitiun ever since.
He, with Ne,4.m. A. U. F'errier, Jaluer Perry, Chas. Allan,
.Mitchell & l^art►hure, and uthers whu o1x-raWd the Hret
saw tuill, were aulonK the first `ettlers. In th". early days
of the settlement, c:riminale were sentencx•d to extract one or
more stumps from the Main smeet, wc,rding to the enor.
mity of their erime, a penalty which was rigorously exacte(l.
The villaKe was incorporated in 1857.

For the informatiun ►►t' tho►e who entertain the idea that
every important new invention is the product of Yankee
ingenuity, it 6 worthy of record that pue ►►f the most ilu-
portant labor saving disa ►veries of the age, was the inven-
tion of an early citizen ►►f Fo us. We rufer to the reaping
machine, which was invente ry v. 1 ►ert Bell, who
was tutor to the 1'anlily of Hou. .ldarn hergt>1+on. The
model of the machine was prebented to the Farmers and
Mechanica Library of Fergus, on the return of that gentle-
man to Scotland. Itsubseqnently mysteriously disappeared
from their nooms, and found its way to the StateP, where
it is supposed to have come into the possession of Mr.
McCormick, who modeled his reaper front it. It is a fact
that the agricultural societies of Great Britain, a few years
sinoe, acknowledged their indebtedness to Mr Bell for
this useful invention, by presertir; 0::•n with £6,000
sterling.

baLicut is a post village, prettily situated on the Irvine
River, about one mile from Elora. It contains four uhoe
shopa, a foundry, coopenge, shoe peg factory, bakery, fancy
store, three hotels, two qeneral stores, two carri ehops,
two blacksmitb ahops, a harness shop, a flonring maill, tailor
abopt two breweries, a cabinet shop, a Lutheran church, and
100 inhabitanta.

The Irvine Foundry has been established 18 years, and
employs 10 hands in the manufacture of threshing ma-
chines, plows, &c. Arr.hibald Filwhie.

The shoe peg factory of James Gladstone has been
established 14 years and employe five or six hands, turning
ou, from 10 to IV bushels a day.

The carriage and agricultural iml ► lemert facto► v of
Robert Siml,w,n & Son has been established 93 yeal; and
employs four or five hands in the manufacturel of carriaôes,
wSons, plows, harr►►ws, and other agricultural implements.

The Salem Roller Flouring Mills have been established
30 vears, and turn out 110 barrels daily. .1--lin Ratz.

the Irvine Mills (roller flouring) has been established
90 eara, and turn out 150 barrels daily . J. & E. Wisaler.

The Salem Brewery llas been established 40 years and
Inanufactures 1agerbeer. Jacob Reuter.

The Irvine Brewery has been established eight or ton
years and turne out 60 barrels weekly. Conrad Doer-
becker.

The I.atheran (:hntr.h is a brick building, seating 15).
Services each alternate Sabbath at ; p. m. Sunday school
at 9 p. m. Rev. John Frosch, of Elmira, pastor.

The village was laid out by Sem Wissler and surveyed
in 1856. Wissler & Erb kept the first store and erected a
saw and grist mill, and tannery. The post-office wca
opened June let, 1863, with Som Wiesler as postmagter.

The township of Nichol was called after Col. Nichol,
who received it as a grant from Government for services in
the war of 1812•14. It subsequently passed into the hands
of Col. Thos. Clarke and others, of Nia ^ars Falls, from whom
7,000 acres, or a fourth part, was purchased by Hon. Adam
Ferguson and James Webster. Settlement commenced
about 1880 in the neighbourhood of $nrnett, the Flewell-
ing familv, from the maritime provinces, being the first
settlerb. tThey were followed by A. F. Sherratt, James
Elmslie, John Cook, John Mutrie, Henry Metcalf, Thes.
Wilson, the Sootts,Canninghatns, and others from Sootland
and England, who settled along the 7th, %:th and 9th con-
twesions, James Davidson and Patrick Scanlan on the 5th
eooression, and the Broadfoots and Dows on the 10th. In
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1884 settlement commencedalonF the river at FerFus. Most
of the settlers on the 11th, 12th and 13th concetslons came
in in 1834 and '35. The 14th, 15th and 16th began settling
in 1835. The first town meeting was held Jan. lot, 1832.
John Bryden and James Craig were elected joint assessors,
and John Mutrie, collector. James Elmalie was the first
town clerk. He was succeeded by James McQueen, the
present clerk, in Jan., 1837, who has retained the office ever
since. The first election of township officere and ()ouncil
took place in 1850, resulting in the election of Thomas
Loghrin, John Valentine, John Watt. Archibald F. bher-
ratt and Chas Allan. Mr. Allan declining to act, John
Brockie was subsequently elected in his place. John Watt
was elected first reeve, and James McQueen, clerk.

Mr. McQueen, who was postmaster, also carried the mail
once a week to Guelph, on horseback, through the woods.
Once on this trip, on cuming to a stream, he f'ound the
bridge had been swept away by a flood, and he swam the
river with his horse. The mail bag got loose and floated
down the river. His clothing froze on him. He went to
a house near by, and attaching a hoe handle to a rake
handle after wading into the stream as far as possible, he
succ®;Ied in rescuing the bag, when, after drying his
clothes, he proceeded on his journey. During the Mc-
Kenzie Rebellion Mr. McQueen would go sometimes twice
and thrice a week to Guel ph to get the news. On one
ocoasion, to avoid the Rebels, who were appropri^itinR all
the horses they could find, he returned a roundabout way
through Eramosa, which delayed him mnch beyond his
regular time. The settlers became very much alarmed at
his absence. When they heard the sound of his horn it
was very welcome news, and they all hasted out to meet him.

About 1840 a large party of poor Hi^hland fishermen
were sent out to Canada by the Duke of Argyle. They
were penniless and only one of them could speak English.
The authorities sent them from one point to another, and
):00 of them were sent by teams to Fergue by the Hamilton
people, and dumped on the street, the teamsters turning
around and driving off without making any explanations.
What to do with them was the question. They showed a
letter from the Duke commending them to the magis-
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trates of the Province. They thought this was all that was
necessary to compel the authnritier, to minister to their ne-
cessities, and were surprised when informed that the Duke
of Argyle had no more authorit' v here than the Czar of
Russia. The aettlera finally gave them homes amongst
them, and set thern to work. They knew nothing of farm-
iug, but were willing to learn. Many of them subsequently
took up land, and became prosperous farmers.

PEEL township is bounded on the north by the town-
ship of Arthur ; on the east by Garafraxa ; on the south by
Nichol and Pilkington, and portions of Waterloo and
Perth countiea ; and on the west by Maryborough. The
W. G. & B. R. R. passes through the central portion, with
stations at Alma, Goldstone and Drayton. The surface is
rolling in character, with a clay soil, two-thirds being
heavy clay, of a depth of six inches, and clay subsoil, and
about one-third a clay loam of a depth of six inches, with a
subsoil of &ravel and sand. One-fourth of the township is
reported first class land, one-half second class, and oue-
tburth third class. It is well -vatered by the Conestoga
River, and other small streams. ' The chief products of the
soil are spring wheat, barley, oats, peas, hay &e. A con-
tderable portion is devoted to pasturage, stock raising

eing largely engaged in. The area of the township is
74,0313 acres, 48,419 of which are cleWd. The timber is
principally hardwood. There are eight post offices in the
township viz : Alma, Creek Bank, Drayton, Glen Allan,
Goldstone, Macton, Parker and Winfield.

ALMA is a post village on the lines of Nichol and Pilk
iugton, on the Sa.:geen road, and is a station on the W
G. & B. R R., distant from Guelph 18 miles. It contains
a harness shop, two stvres, two shoe shops, two hotels, two
blacksmith ahops, two wagon shops, two saw mills, a
planing mill, two chopping mills, three churohes, and 225
inhabitants.

The planing and saw mill of Henry Cousins was estab-
liahed in 1881. The manufacture of latnber, sash, doors,
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blinds, and a general building business is carried on .
There is also a run of stones for chopping .

The saw mill of James I.edinzharn has been established
17 years, and employs five or six hands in the manufacture
o f lumber rmd shingles . There is also a run of stones for
chopping

Alma L . O. L. No. 531 ► , was orgRnized about 30 years
a go . Wm . H. Cousins, W . M . ; Hugh Cameron, Sec .
Meeta Thursday, on or betbre full moon . There are 30
members .

The Presbyterian Church is a brick building, seating
225. Services at 10 .30 a . In . Sundav school after service .
There are 110 members . Rev. John Davidson .

Holy Trinity Church (Epis .) is a brick building, seating
150. Services at 3 p. In . Sunday school at 2. Rev. Mr .
Spencer, of Elora, officiates.

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
ing 200. It was erected in 1875, at a co5t of $3,501 ► . Ser-
vices at 10 .30 a .m. and 6 .30 p .m. Sunday school at 9 .
Prayer meeting on Wednesday . There are 40 or 50
members . Rev. Mr. Charlton, of Arthur, officiates .

The village was laid ou t about 30 Y ears ago, by Alex .
IV1cCrae and 'fhos . Graham .

CREEK BANK is a post office on the line of Pilkington,
three miles west of Alma, wid 20 miles from Guelph.

DBAr•roN is a thriving incorporated village on the Marv-
borough line, an t a station on the W . G . & B. R . it., dis-
tant 11 miles from Palmerston, and 28 from iiuelph. The
Conestoga Itiver passes through the village, aff„rding an
excellent water privilege. The village is regulHrly laid
out, and as it is surrounded by a fine agricultural countr~% ,
and being on the line of railway, it has become an import-
ant shipp ing point for grain and cattle . A weekly paper,
the .Ara, is published here, which is well sustained . The
village contains ajewellery store, butcher shop, two cooper
shops, four grocery stores, two stove stores, a brick yard,
two tanneries, three general stores, a furniture store, a man-
ufactory of t<rtlficial limbe, three shoe stores, a bakery, two
drug ctorw, two book stores, tour hotels, two blacksmith
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shops, a hardware store, a banking house, a livery stable,
barber shop, two carriage shops, two harness shops a print-
ing office, flouring mill, saw mill, planing mill, saéh, door,
and blind factory, photograph gallery, liquor store, two
tailoring establishments, four churches, and a population
of 800 .

The planing mill of F. W. Schwendirnan has been es-
tablished sven years, and employs twenty hands in the
manufacture of sash, doors, blinds, and a general building
business .

The Drayton Roller Mill (flouring) has been established
00 years . There are six sets of rollers with a capacity of
5) barrels a (lay. R. J. Pujolas. A saw rnill in connec-
tion .

The Wellington Tannery was established in 1880 and
manufactures ~arness and sole leather . R. Cusford & Son .

The tannery of Stricker & Co. has been establisbed 1 6
vears, and manufactures a general variety of leather. Fonr
hands are employed .

The brick yard of John Clark has been established 12
years and employs four hands, turning out 3o),000 white
Ilrick annually .

Conestoga Lodge, No . 295, A . F . and A. M., was organ-
ized 10 years ago. -. Jamieson, W. M.; S. R. Dales,
Sec. Meets Tuesday on or before full moon . There are
50 or 60 rnembera .

Conrt Wellington, No. 21, I .O.F., was organized Oct .
22d, 1878. Daniel Smith, M.D., C.R . ; Henry Diebel,
recording secretary. Meets first and third Tuesdays .
There are 25 members .

Bethel Lod e, No. 753, I. O. G. T. Phineas Henry,
W. C .; W. B. ~herk, Sec. Meets Wednesdays. There are
35 members .

The Christian Church is a brick building, seating 400 .
Services at 11 a .m . and 6 .30 p .m . Sunday school at 9 .30
it. m. Prayer meeting on Tuesday. There are 100 mem-
h ers . Rev. W. S. Cowle .

The Canada Methodist Church is a fram o building, seat-
ing 450 . Services at 10 a. m. and 6.30 p rn . Sunday
dchool at 2 .30. Bible olaes on Monday . Prayer meeting
on Thursday. There are 131 members . Rev. James Mc•
Alister .



LX2111. 	WF.1.1.1N11ToN  COI  NTY DIEEPTOET: 
PECI.—PILKINgiToN. 

Christ Church (Epis.) is a frame building, seating 100. 
Service at 7 p. tn. Sunday schtxd at 2 p.m. There are 
eight or ten families. Rev. Edward Westmacott, of 
Moorefield, officiates. 

St. Martin's Church (R. C.) is a brick building, seating 
150. It was erected in 1881 at a cost of $2,400. Services 
every third Sunday at 10.30 &IL Sunday school at 2.30 
p.m. There are 20  families. Rev. Mr. O'Reilly, of Acton , 
prieet. 

The village 'vas  named after Drayton, Eng., the resi-
dence of Sir Robert Peel, the  naine  being proposed b,y 
Joseph H. Hartney. at a public meeting called for the 
purpose of selecting a name for the post office in 1 851. The 
village was laid out in different surveys by J. Il. Hartney, 
Edward Dales, W. S. Handiv, and W. C..Wortley, about 
1854. These gentlemen weie the first settlers on the vil-
lage site. Rey. Ezra Adams was the first postmaster. J. 
H. Hartney built the first house, and kept the tirst store. 
Robert French kept the first hotel. Rev. Ezra Adams 
(Meth.)  vas  the first preacher located here. Geo. Douglaa 
kept the first blacksmith shop, and Morton & McLean the 
first wagon shop. Dr. Ecroyd, now of Mt. Forest, was the 
first school teacher. 

GLEN ALLAN is a pleteant village in the month-west part, 
on the Conestoga River, distant 10 miles from Elmira, In 
from Drayton, the  saine  from Goldstone station, and 2S 
miles from Guelph. A daily stage connects it with Dray-
ton. The village contains t wo hotels, a harness shop, thrCe 
blacksmith shops, two wagon shops, a stove store, tailor 
shop, two shoe shops, a saw and chopping mill, cabinet 
shop, store, two churches. and 300 inhabitants. 

hie saw mill of Benj. I'attison has been established 
four years. In connection is a chopping mill. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, Beth-
ing 200. Services at 10.30 a. m. and 6,30 p. m. Sunday 
school at 2.30 p.m. Prayer meeting on Thursday. There 
are 65 members. Rev. Benj. Sherlock. 

The Presbyterian Church is a frame bnilding. ,aating 
400. Services at 10.30 a.m. Sunday schori at noon. 
Prayer meeting on Thursday. There are 200 members. 
l ev. James Bryant. 

The village was laid out over 30 years ago by Archibald 
Kirkland, P. L S. The post office was established in 
1849, with Geo. Allan as poatinaster, who was also the first 
merchant, and erected the first saw and gtist mill. Joseph  
Rogers kept the first hotel. The Presbyterian  was  the first 
church erected, with ROW. Mr. Irvine as ',tenor. 

GoLnerroNE is a post office near the centre one and three-
quarter miles from Goldstone station on die W. G. &. B. 
R. R. distant frotn Palmerston 15 miles, and 28  frein  
G uelph. 

?heron is a post office on the line of Wellesley, three 
miles froin (den Allan. Daily mail. 

l'AttExa is a post village on the Saugeen road, two mile» 
east of Goldstone station. It contains a blackstnith shop, 
hotel, saw, stave and shingle mill, store, Methodist church, 
and 75 inhabitants. 

The saw mill of Wm. Boothe  lias  been eetablished 12 
years and employs from eight to ten hands in the manufac-
ture of lumber, staves, shingles and heading. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
ing 250. It was erected in 1869 at a cost of $1,500. Ser-
vices at 6.30 p. in. Sunday school at 10 a. m. There are 
25 tnembers. Rev. ?dr. McAlister, of Drayton, ptunor. 

WINFIELD if; a post village in the south part, seven miles 
from Alma station, and 26 from Guelph. It contains two 
stores, a blacksmith ahop, shoe shop, and 50 inhabitants. 

This township commeneed settling about 1830. Atncng 
the first settlers in the Routh part were Wm. Millis, John 
Jackson, Thos. (;hent, the brothers Sutherland, Garret 
Malloy, Geo. Allan, Thos. and John Garbutt, and Thos. 
Cosford, mostly from York county. The north part was 
settled principally by Irish Catholics In 1837 Peel con-
tained but 300 inhabitanta, which had increaeed by 1850 to 
1,966. At the present tinte the population amounts to 
4,116. 

PILKINGTON township is bounded on the north by the 
township of Peel ; on the east by Nichol on the eouth by  
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Guelph ; and on the weet by Waterloo county. The sur• 
face is inostly rolling, and the soil principally clay and 
Pawl.. loam. One-half the township is reported first-class 
fanning land. a quarter, second-clam, and the remainder 
third-class. It is well watered by the Grand River and 
other streams. The chief products of the soil are fall and 
!spring wheat, barley, oats, peas, turnips, hay, &c., and a 
considerable portion is devoted  tu  pasturam, stock raising 
being larely en d in. The tinder (*numbs of hardwood 
and cedar. TEagcsetrea of the township is 29,858 acres, . 
22,1S0 of which are cleared. The population is 1,750. 
There are three post-oftictss in the township, viz.. Inver-
hangh, Pentland and Poneonhy. 

Invitee •vott is a post-office its the south part, on theGrand 
River, four mike from Elora. 

Pitsrmarin is a Pt-office in the north-west part, near the 
Waterloo county line, five miles from Elora, and 18 frotn 
Guelph. 

PONIONST is a poet  village on the Guelph and Elora 
gravel road, four miles from-Elont, and nine from Guelph. 
It contains a store, blacksmith and wagon ehop, and 75 
inhabitants. Tri-weekly mail. 

The township originally formed a part of the township of 
Woolwich, and was known aa the " Pilkington block," 
belonging to the estate of Gen. Pilkington. It commenced 
settling in 1820, and was all eettled in 35 years. 

PUSLINCH is the  most eoutherly township of the 
county. It is bounded on the north by the township of 
Guelph on the east by Halton county ; on the south by 
Wentworth county and on the west Fiv Waterloo county. 
The surface is quite rolling, and the sod generally a standy 
loc-a, with a email proportion black loam. and an equel 
quantity gravelly. One-third is reported first-class a,gri-
cultural land, one-third second-claes and one-third third-
clam. It is well watered by numerous small streams. 
The preduct* of the soil are fall and spring wheat, barley, 
eats, rye, peas, turnipe, hay, &c., with a considerable  

amount devoted to pasturage, cattle raising being a promi-
nent industry. About one-eighth of the township is still 
timbered with beech, maple, cedar and tamarack. It is 
surrounded by rail ways, though only tme, the Credit Valley, 
psu3see through it, in the southern part. Good markets  are  
found at Guelph. Galt, litsspeler, die. The area of the 
township irè 58.243 acrets, 37,010 of which are cleared. 
The population  ils 3,2S3. Pnalinch is remarkable for two 
lakes, situated near the weatern boundary. The larger has 
an area of 64S acres, and near the center is an island a 
little over six acres in citent.  Two other islands, of more 
diminutive proportions, add 14 intiiderably to the beauty  of  
the scenery. 1 his lake Ines become quite a popular rests-  rt 
for summer pleassue parties, and a good hotel ham been 
erected for their accommodation, while a small steamer 
plies upon the waters of the lake. The smaller lake contains 
about twenty acres, and is said to be the deeper of the two 
A belt of land, about a furlong in width, separates the two 
lakes, and they have no visible communication, nor any 
source of supPly exc,pt from springs in their beds. The 
luger lake dieciiargea the surplus waters by a small stream 
into the Speed, hut the smaller has no  apparent  means of 
either supply or discharge. Puslinch contains seven post-
offices, viz.. Aberfoyle, Arkell, Corwhin, Crieff, Killeen, 
Morriston and Ptislinch. 

ABERFOTI.K iS a post village on the Brock Road, seven 
tuiles  from Guelph. A daily  stage  connectait with Guelph 
and Hamilton, and daily  mails are received. The village 
contains a coeperage, two stores, a flouring mill, two 
hotels, two blacksmith &hope, a wagon shop, saw mill, shoe 
shop, an M. E. church and 200 inhabitants. 

The Aberfoyle Mills (flouring) have been established 16 
or 18 years. There are four runs of stonee, with a capacity 
of 100.  barrels a day. R. B. Morrison. 

The saw mill of Allan McIntyre has been established 10 
years, anti manufactures lumber and lath. 

Mt. Carmel M. E. Church is a brick building, seating 150. 
It was erected in 1877. Services at 3 p.m. Sunday school 
at 2. Prater meeting on Thursday. There are 15 mem 
hers. Rev-. B. L. Cohoe, of Mountsberg, officiates; David 
Kearns, of Moffat, assistant. 
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Aberfoyle was laid out by Geo. Schatz, about 1854. 
Tile village continenecd settling about 1830. The post-
office was opened about 1850 with Samuel Falconbridge 
as postmaster. John McFarlane kept the first store. He 
named the village after bis native place in Scotland. The 
first hotel was kept by a Mr. Flynn. Ebenezer Reid taught 
the first school. George McLean carried on the tirst gnat 
mill, about twenty yearb ago. The first saw mill wu erected 
by George Schatz about 1831, who also erected a tannery 
about the  sa l ie  tune. Among the first settlers were 
Patrick Mahon, John Black, Peter McBeth and others. 

A «JILL is a post village in the north-east part, five  miles 
 from Guelph. The river Speed pukes near by, where is 

located a flouring and W001131 mill. The vili%:e contains 
&store, blackamith shop, wagon shop, Idethist church, 
and 125 inhabitants. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a brick building, seat-
ing 200. Services each alternate Sabbath at 10.30 a. in. 
Sunday school at 9. Prayer meeting on Wednesday. 

The post-office was opened 18 or 20 yean ■ ago, with 
Henry Willoughby as postmaeter. Daily mail. 

COawnix is a post-office east of the center, near the 
Halton county line. 

Centre is a post village in the south part, three miles 
from Schaw station, on the C. V. R., and ten miles from 
Guelph. Tri-weekly mail. It contains two stores, a shoe 
shop, blacksmith shop, Presbyterian church, and 50 inhab-
itanta. 

Knox Church is a brick building, seating 460. It was 
erected in 1882. Services at 11 a.m. in Gaelic, and at 1 
p. m. in English. Rev. Evan McAuley. 

Ktu.les is a post office near the south-west corner, un 
Mill Creek, one and a half miles from Leslie station, on 
the C. V. R., seven miles from Galt, and thirteen from 
Guelph. 

Ifœuturrom is a  post village on the Brock road, nine miles 
from Guelph, and one and a half from Schaw station, on 
the  C. V. B. A dail) stage connecte it with Guelph and 
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Hamilton. It contains three shoe stores, a brick yard, 
butcher shop, wagon tehop, undertaker's shop, two Glack-
stnith shops, a pump factory, three hotele, flour and teed 
store, a manufactory of roof paint, a stove store, two gen-
c.al atoret, a hantem shop, cooper situp, two churches. and 
350 inhabitants. 

The Church of the Evangelical  Association  is a brick 
building, seating 450. It was erected in 1856, and en-
larged in 1880, coating altogether $2,800. Services at 10 
a.m. and 7 p.m. Sunday school at 2. There are 95 mem-
bers. Rev. Daniel Reader. 

There is also a Catholic church, hut no services are 
held. 

The Plymouth Brethren hold tnorning and evening ser-
vices regularly, and maintain a Sunday school. 

The post  office Waà3 -opened about 1850, with R. B. 
Morrison u postmaster. Mr. litturrison kept the first store. 
Alex. Ochs kept the firm. hotel. The Evangelical Associa-
tion built the fire. church. Rev. Win. Meldrum (Preeb.) 
was the first settled preacher. Daily mail. 

Posueca is a post village in the south part, near the 
Wentworth county line, on the Guelph and 131 undas gravel 
road. It is also a station on the C. V. R. It is distant 11 
miles from Guelph, It front Galt, and 17 from Hamilton. 
The station is called " Schaws." The village contains a 
store, tailor shop, and 75 inhabitants. Daily mail. A 
daily stage conneets it with Guelph and Hamilton. 

The poet office WU establiahed in 1841, with  Win. 
 Leslie, postmaster. It was the first  post  office opened 

between Guelph and Dundas. 

WEST GARAFRAXA township, on the eut  border, is 
bounded on the north by West Luther ; on the east by 
East Garafraxa, Dufferin County ; on the south by Era-
mosa ; and on the west by Nichol and Peel. It has a 
rolling surface, with a soil principally of clay loam, with 
heavy clay subeoil, about one-fifth sandy lotun, and a small 
proportion black loam and gravelly. Three-fifths is report-
ed first class agricultural land, one-fifth second class, and 
eue-tifth third clue. It is well watered by the Grand 
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The saw and shingle mill of Warren Hathaway  bu  been 
established four years and employs six hands, turning out 
14,000 shingles and ,O®  feet of lumber daily. 

The grist mill in ounnectiun with the abov- e was °stab. 
lishett in Feb. 1889, and contains two runs  of  stone& 

Luther L O. L  No 936, was organir.ed six or 'eves 
years ago. J. T. Pwry, W. M.;  Win.  Boyd, Sec. Meetà 
Wedneoday, on or before full muon.  There are se 
members. 

The Canada Methodist Church à • frame building, seat. 
ittg 200. Services at 2 p sit. Sunday school at 1. Rev, 
Mr. Bilby. 

The Canada Presbyterian Church à • rough-east build-
ing. 300. Services at 10 am. There are 60 or 70 
mend I I  Se  et f, but no regular pastor. 

The post office was established eight or ten years age, 
withltobert W. Conn u postmaster. Tri-weekly mail. 

Ihnucts is a post rillagt'• near the center, distant nine 
miles  troua  Arthur village. It contains • saw and shingle 
mill, wagon shop. blacksmith shop, store, church, and 40 
inhabitants. 

The saw and shingle mill of Thomas Graham  é Son haa 
been established eight years and employs five hands, tem. 
ing out trom 15I to lb lumen-, of shingles, and 5,000 to 
6,000 rev of lumber daily. 

The Catania Methodist Church is a frame building, seat-
ing 150. Services each alternate Sunday at 1( a. m. 

The post-office  was opened in 1878. Semi-weekly mail 
Emma« is a post-office on the Grey county line, 11 

males east of Mt. Forest, and 41 miles  from Guelph. 
Gonnonvtits is a post village on the line of Arthur, five 

mile) from Attliut village. It contains • store, saw and 
shingle mill, blacksmith shop and 50 inhabitants. 

The saw and shingle mill of Edward Ford has been es-
tablished 19 or 14 years, and turns out 10,000 feet of lurnber 
and front 20 to 25 moues of shingle daily. 

Tbe post °thee was ?teed in IA76 with Peter Shaugh-
nessy as postmaster. Semi-weekly mail. 

Mono" is a post office north of tha center, nine miles 
from Arthur village. and 36 trom Guelph. Seani-weekly 
mail. 

L. 
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